THE IMPERIAL VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

President Katherine Burnworth Vice-President Laura Goodsell <u>Treasurer</u> Donald W. Medart Jr. <u>Secretary</u> Arturo Proctor <u>Trustee</u> Enola Berker <u>Trustee</u> Rodolfo Valdez <u>Trustee</u> James Garcia

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 1275 MAIN STREET EL CENTRO, CALIFORNIA 92243

Support for the IVHD (AB918) Tomas Virgen

Thursday, April 11, 2024

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF IMPERIAL VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT WILL CONDUCT A <u>REGULAR MEETING</u>

THE REGULAR MEETING WILL BEGIN AT <u>6:00 P.M.</u> AT EL CENTRO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 1275 MAIN STREET EL CENTRO, CA. 92243

AGENDA

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. ROLL CALL-DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
- 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 4. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA: In the case of an emergency, items may be added to the agenda by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. An emergency is defined as a work stoppage, a crippling disaster, or other activity that severely imperils public health, safety, or both. Items on the agenda may be taken out of sequential order as their priority is determined by the Board of Directors. The Board may take action on any item appearing on the agenda.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

At this time the Board will hear comments on any agenda item and on any item not on this agenda. If any person wishes to be heard, he or she shall stand; address the president, identify self, and state the subject for comment. Time limit for each speaker is 3 minutes total (not 3 minutes per item, but rather, 3 minutes per speaker for all items on the agenda). A total of 15 minutes shall be allocated for each item for all members of the public. The board may find it necessary to limit the total time allowable for all public comments on items not appearing on the agenda at anyone one meeting to one hour.

6. CONSENT CALENDAR:

Any member of the Board, staff or the public may request that items for the Consent Calendar be removed for a discussion. Items so removed shall be acted upon separately immediately following approval of items remaining on the Consent Calendar.

7. BOARD COMMENTS: REPORTS ON MEETING AND EVENTS ATTENDED BY DIRECTORS, AND AUTHORIZATION FOR DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE AT UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS/DIRECTOR COMMENTS:

• Brief reports by Directors on meetings and events attended. Schedule of upcoming Board meetings and events.

8. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION ITEMS:

- a. Discussion and Possible Approval of Directors & Officers Insurance
- b. Discussion and Possible Approval of General Liability Insurance
- c. Discussion and Possible Approval of District Bylaws
- d. Discussion and Possible Approval of Conflict of Interest Policy
- e. Review of Heffernan and IVHD Financial Statements
- f. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Creation of Bank Accounts and Requests for Additional Funding from Heffernan and Pioneers Memorial Healthcare District
- g. Updates regarding AB 918 Obligations and Negotiations
- 9. PRESENTATION BY NATIONAL DEMOGRAPHICS CORPORATION: Introduction to Districting

10. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA:

This item is placed on the agenda to enable the Board to identify and schedule future items for discussion at upcoming meetings and/or identify press release opportunities.

11. ADJOURNMENT:

- a. Regular Board meetings will be held as determined by the IVHD Board.
- b. The next regular meeting of the Board will be held: To be Determined.
- c. The agenda package and material related to an agenda item submitted after the packets distribution to the Board is available for public review in the lobby of the office where the Board meeting will take place.

POSTING STATEMENT

A copy of the agenda was posted April 8, 2024, at 601 Heber Avenue, Calexico, California 92231 at 1:00p.m. and other locations throughout the IVHD_pursuant to CA Government code 54957.5. Disclosable public records and writings related to an agenda item distributed to all or a majority of the Board, including such records and written distributed less than 72 hours prior to this meeting are available for public inspection at the District Administrative Office where the IVHD meeting will take place.

NOTICE In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individuals requesting special accommodations to attend and/or participate in District Board meetings may contact the district at (760)357-6522. Notifications 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the district to make reasonable accommodations.

IMPERIAL VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

BYLAWS

Approved April 11, 2024

PREAMBLE

Pursuant to AB 918 (2023), codified in Health and Safety Code §§ 32499.5 *et seq.*, the IMPERIAL VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT was created within the County of Imperial effective October 8, 2023, under the terms of The Local Health Care District Law of the State of California (H&S Code §§ 32000 *et seq.*)

The objectives of this District shall be to promote the public health and general welfare of the communities it serves.

This District shall be empowered to receive and administer funds for the attainment of these objectives, in accordance with the purposes and powers set forth in The Local Health Care District Law of the State of California (H&S Code §§ 32000 *et seq.*) and other applicable law.

ARTICLE I

Purposes and Scope

Section l. <u>Scope of Bylaws</u>.

These Bylaws shall be known as the "District Bylaws" and shall govern the IMPERIAL VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT (referred to herein as the "District"), its Board of Directors, and all of its affiliated and subordinate organizations and groups.

The Board of Directors may delegate certain powers to the Medical Staff, and/or to other affiliated and subordinate organizations and groups, such powers to be exercised in accordance with the respective Bylaws of such groups. All powers and functions not expressly delegated to such affiliated or subordinate organizations or groups in the Bylaws of such other organizations or groups are to be considered residual powers vested in the District Board of Directors.

The Bylaws of the Medical Staff and other affiliated and subordinate organizations and groups, and any amendments to such Bylaws, shall not be effective until they are approved by the District Board of Directors. In the event of any conflict between the Bylaws of the Medical Staff and any other affiliated or subordinate organization or group, and the provisions of these District Bylaws, these District Bylaws shall prevail. In the event the District Bylaws are in conflict with any statute of the State of California governing hospital and health care districts, such statute shall be controlling.

Section 2. <u>Purposes</u>.

The purposes of the District shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:

- a. Within the limits of community resources, to provide the best facilities and services possible for the acute and continued care of the injured and all persons of the Imperial Valley, regardless of race, creed, national origin, age or disability.
- b. To assure the highest level of patient care in the hospital of the District.
- c. To coordinate the services of the District with community agencies and other hospitals providing health care services.
- d. To conduct educational and research activities essential to the attainment of its purposes.
- e. To do any and all other acts necessary to carry out the provisions of the Local Health Care District Law, other applicable law, and District Bylaws and policies.

Section 3. <u>Profit or Gain</u>.

There shall be no contemplation of profit or pecuniary gain, and no distribution of profits, to any individual, under any guise whatsoever, nor shall there by any distribution of assets or surpluses to any individual on the dissolution of this District.

Section 4. <u>Disposition of Surplus</u>.

Should the operation of the District result in a surplus of revenue over expenses during any particular period, such surplus may be used and dealt with by the Directors for charitable hospital purposes, such as the establishment of free or part-free hospital beds, or for improvements in the hospital's facilities for the care of the sick, injured, or disabled, or for other purposes not inconsistent with the Local Health Care District Law, other applicable law, and District Bylaws and policies.

ARTICLE II

OFFICES

Section l. <u>Offices</u>.

The principal office for the transaction of and for the business of the District is hereby fixed at_______, address, California. Branch offices may at any time be established by the Board of Directors at any place within or without the boundaries of District, for the benefit of District and the people served by the District.

Section 2. <u>Mailing Address</u>.

The mailing address of District shall be as follows:

IMPERIAL VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT c/o XXXXXXX ADDRESS CITY, CA, ZIP

ARTICLE III

DIRECTORS

Section 1. <u>Number, Qualifications, Election or Appointment</u>.

The initial Board of Directors shall be appointed pursuant to Health & Safety Code 32499.6. The initial Board of Directors shall adopt a resolution to divide the district into seven (7) voting districts, numbered consecutively. By the conclusion of the 2028 general election, the Board of Directors shall consist of seven (7) members, one per voting district, who are elected (or appointed) in accordance with the Local Health Care District Law of the State of California, and other applicable law, each of whom shall be a registered voter residing in their respective electoral district. (H&S Code 32499.7, 32100 & 32100.5.)

Section 2. <u>Term</u>.

The initial Board of Directors shall create a staggered board of directors by choosing a number of board members to remain on the board following the first district election occurring after January 1, 2024. The voting districts established pursuant to this section shall be effective for subsequent district elections, commencing with the next district election occurring after January 1, 2024. At the expiration of the terms of office of the members of the board of directors then in office, and thereafter, these members of the board of directors shall be elected by voting districts. By the conclusion of the 2028 general election, all seven Board members shall be elected officials.

A person shall not be eligible to hold the office of member of the board of directors unless they have been a resident of the voting district from which they are elected for 30 days next preceding the date of the election. A member of the initial board of directors, appointed pursuant to Section 32499.6, shall not be eligible to become an elected board member of the district for the first round of elections for each respective board seat.

The term of each member of the Board of Directors elected shall be four (4) years, or until his or her successor is elected and has qualified. A member of the Board of Directors elected (or appointed pursuant to the provisions of the Uniform District Election Law, Elections Code 10500-10556) shall take office at noon on the first Friday in December next following the District general election. (H&S Code 32002, 32100 and 32100.5; Elections Code 10554.)

Section 3. <u>Powers and Duties</u>.

The Board of Directors shall have and exercise all the powers of a Health Care District set forth in the Local Health Care District Law (H&S Code 32000 *et seq.*), other applicable law, and District Bylaws and policies, as well as the powers listed herein:

- a. To control and be responsible for the management of all operations and affairs of the District.
- b. To make and enforce all rules and regulations necessary for the administration, government, protection, and maintenance of hospitals and other facilities under District jurisdiction.
- c. To appoint the President/Chief Executive Officer and to define the powers and duties of such appointee.
- d. To appoint the Chief Compliance Officer and to define the powers and duties of such appointee.
- e. To delegate certain powers to the Medical Staff and other affiliated or subordinate organizations in accordance with their respective bylaws. The Medical Staff shall notify the Board of Directors upon election of the Chief of the Medical Staff and of all Chairpersons of the various medical departments and services, whose powers and duties shall be defined by the Medical Staff Bylaws as approved by the Board of Directors.
- f. To approve or disapprove all constitutions, bylaws, rules and regulations, including amendments thereto; of all affiliated or subordinate organizations.
- g. To appoint, promote, demote and remove all members of the Medical Staff. The Medical Staff shall make recommendations in this regard.
- h. To establish policies for the operation of this District, its Board of Directors and its facilities.
- i. To designate by resolution persons who shall have authority to sign checks drawn on the funds of the District.
- j. To do any and all other acts necessary to carry out the provisions of these Bylaws or the provisions of the Local Health Care District Law and other applicable law.
- k. To negotiate and enter into agreements with independent contractors, including physicians, paramedical personnel, other agencies and other facilities within the District's jurisdiction. (H&S Code 32121 and 32128.)

Along with the powers of the Board of Directors, it shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to establish rules of the hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction, which shall include the following:

- aa. Provision for the organization of physicians and surgeons, podiatrists, and dentists, licensed to practice in the State of California who are permitted to practice in the hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction into a formal Medical Staff, with appropriate officers and bylaws and with staff appointments on an annual or biennial basis.
- bb. Provision for a procedure for appointment and reappointment of Medical Staff as provided by the standards of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations.
- cc. Provision that the Medical Staff shall be self-governing with respect to the professional work performed in hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction; that the Medical Staff shall meet in accordance with the minimum requirements of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations; and that the medical records of the patients shall be the basis for such review and analysis.
- dd. Provision that accurate and complete medical records be prepared and maintained for all patients.
- ee. Limitations with respect to the practice of medicine and surgery in the hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction as the Board of Directors may find to be in the best interests of the public health and welfare, including appropriate provision for proof of ability to respond in damages by applicants for staff membership, as long as no duly licensed physician and surgeon is excluded from staff membership solely because he or she is licensed by the Osteopathic Medical Board of California.

Members of the Board of Directors shall also have the following duties:

- aaa. Duty of Care. Directors shall exercise proper diligence in their decision-making process by acting in good faith in a manner that they reasonably believe is in the best interest of the District, and with the level of care that an ordinarily prudent person would exercise in like circumstances.
- bbb. Duty of Loyalty. Directors shall discharge their duties unselfishly, in a manner designed to benefit only the District and not the Directors personally or politically, and shall disclose to the full Board of Directors situations that they believe may present a potential for conflict with the purposes of the District.
- ccc. Duty of Obedience. Directors shall be faithful to the underlying purposes of the District described in Article I, section 2, herein.

If it is found, by a majority vote of all of the Board of Directors in office at that time, that a Director has violated any of his or her duties to the detriment of the District, such Director is subject to removal from office according to the procedures set forth in section 9, subdivision a, of Article IV.

The rules of the hospitals and other facilities within District jurisdiction shall, insofar as is consistent with the Local Health Care District Law and other applicable law, be in accord with and contain minimum standards not less than the rules and standards of private or voluntary hospitals. Unless specifically prohibited by law, the Board of Directors may adopt other rules which could be lawfully adopted by private or voluntary hospitals. (H&S Code 32121 and 32128.)

Section 4. <u>Compensation</u>.

- a. The Board of Directors shall serve without compensation, except that the Board of Directors, by a Resolution adopted by a majority vote of the members of the Board of Directors, may authorize the payment of not to exceed One Hundred and No/100 Dollars (\$100.00) per meeting not to exceed six meetings a month as compensation to each member of the Board of Directors. (H&S Code 32103.). If the District compensates its members for more than five meetings in a calendar month, the Board of Directors shall annually adopt a written policy describing, based on a finding supported by substantial evidence, why more than five meetings per month are necessary for the effective operation of the District. The Board of Directors, by ordinance adopted pursuant to Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 20200) of Division 10 of the Water Code, may increase the amount of compensation received for attending meetings of the board by no more than 5 percent annually.
- b. For purposes of this provision, "meeting" shall have the same definition as set forth in the Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code 54950 *et seq.*) and other applicable law; provided that payment of compensation shall be further subject to a member's compliance with such policies as the Board of Directors may establish. A Director is eligible for compensation under this provision for attendance at a regular or special meeting of a committee or subcommittee only if the Director is a duly-appointed member of that committee or subcommittee as of the date of attendance, or as may be authorized by Board of Directors Policy as an "occurrence" and permitted by law.
- C. Each member of the Board of Directors shall be allowed his or her actual necessary traveling and incidental expenses incurred in the performance of official business of the District as approved by the Board of Directors in

accordance with applicable law, including but not limited to the provisions set forth in AB 1234, as they may be revised from time to time. (H&S Code SS 32103.)

Section 5. <u>Vacancies</u>.

Any vacancy upon the Board of Directors shall be filled by the methods prescribed in Section 1780 of the Government Code, State of California laws and other applicable law. (H&S Code SS 32100.)

Section 6. <u>Resignations</u>.

Any member of the Board of Directors may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, or to the Chairperson, or to the Secretary or to the Clerk of the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall take effect as of the date of the receipt of the notice or any later time specified therein and unless specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make the resignation effective.

Section 7. <u>Absences From Meetings</u>.

The term of any member of the Board of Directors shall expire if he or she is absent from three consecutive regular meetings, or from four of any five consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors by resolution declares that a vacancy exists on the Board of Directors.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Section 8. <u>Regular Meetings</u>.

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors of the District shall be scheduled for the second Thursday of each calendar month at 6:00 p.m. PST or as otherwise determined by the Board of Directors at least annually, at the address indicated on such regular meeting agendas in the County of Imperial, California. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, change the time, the day of the month of such regular meetings and the location (provided the location is within the boundaries of the District) as dictated by holiday schedules or changing circumstances. (H&S Code ss 32104; Gov. Code 54954.)

Section 9. <u>Special Meetings</u>.

A special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the presiding officer of the Board of Directors or by four (4) members of the Board of Directors, by providing written notice as specified herein to each member of the Board of Directors and as otherwise provided by the Brown Act.

The notice shall be delivered by any means to effectuate actual notice, including but not limited to, personally, email or by mail and shall be received at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of the meeting as specified in the notice.

The call and notice shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at these meetings by the Board of Directors.

The call and notice shall be posted at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the special meeting in a location that is freely accessible to members of the public. (Gov. Code 54956.)

Section 10. Quorum.

A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. (H&S Code 32106.) A quorum of the Board of Directors is the number of members that must be present in order to transact business. Members of the Board of Directors who are disqualified by law from participating in a given matter may not be counted toward a quorum for that matter. Members who are entitled to vote, but who voluntarily abstain from voting on a given matter, shall be counted toward a quorum for that matter.

Section 11. Number of Votes Required for Board of Directors Action.

In order for the Board of Directors to take action, a majority of the Directors entitled to vote on the matter and who have not abstained must vote in favor of the motion, proposal or resolution.

Section 12. Adjournment.

The Board of Directors may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum may so adjourn from time to time. If all members are absent from any regular or adjourned regular meeting, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Board of Directors may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place and he or she shall cause a written notice of the adjournment to be given in the same manner as provided for special meetings, unless such notice is waived as provided for in special meetings.

A copy of the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on the District's website and on or near the door of the place where the regular, adjourned regular, special or adjourned special meeting was held within twenty-four (24) hours after the time of adjournment.

When a regular or adjourned regular meeting is adjourned as herein provided, the resulting adjourned regular meeting is a regular meeting for all purposes. When an order of adjournment of any meeting fails to state the hour at which the adjourned meeting is to be held, it shall be held at the hour specified for regular meetings by these Bylaws. (Gov. Code 54955.)

Section 13. Public Meetings.

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Local Health Care District Law and other applicable law. (Gov. Code 54953(a); H&S Code 32106 & 32155.)

Section 14. Setting the Agenda.

At least seventy-two (72) hours before a regular meeting, the District Board of Directors or its designee shall post an agenda containing a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed in closed session. A brief general description of an item generally need not exceed 20 words. The agenda shall specify the time and location of the regular meeting and shall be posted in a location that is freely accessible to members of the public. If requested, the agenda, shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 121 32). In addition, the agenda shall include information regarding how, to whom, and when a request for disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public meetings.

The agenda is developed by the Board of Directors' Chairperson, President/Chief Executive Officer and General Legal Counsel. Any other Board of Directors member has the right to place an item on the agenda through the Chairperson. In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson has the authority to place an item on the agenda, and in the absence of both the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson, the Secretary has the right to place an item on the agenda. In the absence of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary, the President/Chief Executive Office or General Legal Counsel shall place an item on the agenda, as requested by any Board of Directors member. All requests by Board of Directors members regarding placement of an item on the agenda shall be in writing. No action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, and Board Directors shall not engage in substantive discussions with members of the public during public comment. On their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, a member of the Board of Directors or its staff may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on his or her own activities. Furthermore, a member of the Board of Directors or the Board of Directors itself, subject to rules or procedures of the Board of Directors, may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, request staff to report back to the body at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.

Section 15. Rules of Order.

The rules contained in Robert's Rules of Order on Parliamentary Procedure shall govern the meetings of the District Board of Directors in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the law of the State of California, the United States, or these Bylaws and/or policies and procedures as adopted by this governing body.

Section 16. Conflicts of Interest.

The District Board of Directors shall comply with all applicable laws regarding conflicts of interest, including but not limited to the California Political Reform Act, the provisions of the California Government Code regarding Prohibited Interests in Contracts, the California Doctrine of Incompatible Offices, as these laws may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

Section l. Officers.

The officers of the Board of Directors shall be a Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. No person shall hold more than one office. Whenever a Board of Directors officer is authorized to execute a written instrument in his or her official capacity, other than for reimbursement of expenses, the Chairperson and Secretary shall do so.

The Board of Directors has the power to prescribe the duties and powers of the District President/Chief Executive Officer, the secretary, and other officers and employees of any health care facilities of the District, to establish offices as may be appropriate and to appoint Board of Directors members or employees to those offices, and to determine the number of and appoint all officers and employees and to fix their compensation. The officers and employees shall hold their offices or positions at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. (H&S Code §§ 32100.001 and 32121(h).)

Section 2. <u>Election of Officers</u>.

The officers of the Board of Directors shall be chosen every calendar year by the Board of Directors at the regular January meeting. They shall assume office at the close of that meeting, and each officer shall hold office for one year, or until his or her successor shall be elected and qualified, or until he or she resigns or is otherwise disqualified to serve.

Section 3. Chairperson.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Chairperson. If at any time the Chairperson shall be unable to act, the Vice Chairperson shall take his or her place and perform his or her duties. If the Vice Chairperson shall also be unable to act, the Board of Directors may

appoint some other member of the Board of Directors to do so and such person shall be vested temporarily with all the functions and duties of the office of the Chairperson.

The Chairperson, or member of the Board of Directors acting as such as above provided:

- a. Shall preside over all the meetings of the Board of Directors.
- b. [Optional for Future]: Board of Directors Chairperson, or his or her designee, shall attend Medical Executive Committee, Joint Conference Committee meetings and other similar meetings of non-District organizations related to operations of the hospital (including those of Medical Staff committees and the hospital foundation) on behalf of the Board of Directors. Designees shall be Board of Directors members and shall at all times exclusively represent the interests of the Board of Directors. Designees may be removed at any time at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors Chairperson.
- c. Shall sign as Chairperson, on behalf of the District, all instruments in writing which he or she has been specifically authorized by the Board of Directors to sign, provided that such instruments shall also be signed by the Secretary of the Board of Directors (other than for reimbursement requests).
- d. Shall have, subject to the advice and control of the Board of Directors, general responsibility for management of the affairs of the District during his or her term in office. (H&S Code 32100.001.)

Section 4. <u>Vice Chairperson</u>.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Vice Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson shall, in the event of absence, incapacitation, resignation, or other inability of the Chairperson, exercise all the powers and perform all the duties herein given to the Chairperson.

Section 5. Secretary.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Secretary. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall perform ministerial duties (i.e., sign legal documents on behalf of the Board of Directors of the District. (H&S code 32100.001.)

Section 6. Treasurer.

The Board of Directors shall elect one of their members to act as Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be required to fulfill the duties under Health and Safety Code Section 32127; provided, however, that these duties are hereby delegated to the District's Chief Financial Officer to the extent permitted by law. (H&S Code 32127; Gov. Code 53600 et seq.)

Section 7. <u>Reserved [Assistant Secretary].</u>

Section 8. <u>Reserved [Assistant Treasurer].</u>

Section 9. <u>Removal, Resignation or Vacancy</u>.

- a. Any officer appointed or elected by the Board of Directors may be removed from that office for failure to discharge the duties of that office, for violation of any of the policies of the Board of Directors, or for any other good cause, as determined by a majority vote of all the Board of Directors in office at that time, at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.
- b. Any officer may resign from said office at any time by giving written notice to

the

Chair of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors Secretary or to the Clerk of the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall take effect as of the date of the receipt of the notice or any later time specified therein, and, unless specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make the resignation effective.

c. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall succeed to that office for the balance of the unexpired term of the Chairperson. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the Secretary or Treasurer, the Board of Directors shall elect an officer to fill the vacancy for the balance of the unexpired term of that officer.

Section 10. Determination of and Sanctions for Willful or Corrupt Misconduct in Office

The following procedure may be used, in addition to any other procedures authorized by law or policy, to determine whether a Board of Directors member has engaged in willful or corrupt misconduct in office within the meaning of Government Code section 3060.

- a. Any member of the Board of Directors may present an accusation in writing to the Board of Directors against member of the Board of Directors alleging willful or corrupt misconduct in office, together with any written materials to support the accusation. "Misconduct in office" shall be broadly construed and include any willful malfeasance, misfeasance, and/or nonfeasance in office, and shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with Government Code section 3060.
- b. After consideration of the accusation, the Board of Directors members present shall then vote on the question of authorizing a formal hearing on the accusation presented. A formal contempt hearing is authorized by the Board of Directors upon the concurrence of a majority of the members present, excluding the accused who shall not have a vote.

- c. Within 7 days of the authorization for a formal contempt hearing, the Board of Directors shall serve upon the accused a copy of the accusation, a statement identifying the reasons for the hearing, and a notice of the days of the hearing. The date of the hearing shall not be less than 10 days from the service of the accusation. Service shall be in person, or if that fails, by leaving a copy of the accusation taped to the entry door of the accused's last known address in plain view.
- d. The accused shall appear before the Board of Directors at the time and date stated in the accusation. However, if the date chosen by the Board of Directors is unacceptable to the accused for good cause as determined by the Board of Directors, another date shall be assigned, but shall not be more than 30 days beyond the original date set by the Board of Directors.
- e. The accused may be represented by counsel in preparing for and/or to be present at the hearing. The cost of such counsel shall be borne by the accused. If the accused chooses to have an attorney represent him at the hearing, he must notify the Secretary of the Board of Directors in writing of that fact at least 5 days before the hearing. The Board of Directors may have a lawyer who is not the regular Board of Directors lawyer, present at the hearing who will conduct the presentation of the Board of Directors' case and question witnesses. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply; however, witnesses and statements shall be made under oath and documentary evidence shall be authenticated. The Board of Directors may establish reasonable time limits on the duration of the hearing. Board of Directors counsel shall not participate in any way in the preparation of the accusation or presentation of evidence, but shall advise the Board of Directors on procedural matters.
- f. Five days before the scheduled hearing, each party shall submit to the Secretary of the Board of Directors a witness list and outline of anticipated evidence, either oral or written, which they intend to introduce at the hearing. Upon demand by either party, this information shall be given to the opposing party by the Board of Directors Secretary on this date. A willful failure to supply this information on a timely basis may cause it to be excluded at the hearing.
- g. At the hearing, the accused may introduce any oral testimony he or she feels will be helpful to the defense. The member of the Board of Directors who presented the accusation may introduce rebuttal evidence. The of Directors shall give weight to all evidence presented. The Board of Directors shall have the power to limit or exclude evidence which is repetitive, not relevant, or has little probative value. The proceeding shall be recorded.
- h. The Board of Directors shall have the burden of establishing the willful or corrupt misconduct by the accused and the burden of proof shall be by a preponderance of

the evidence. The Board of Directors may introduce any evidence, oral or written testimony, the Board of Directors feels will be helpful to its case.

- i. If the accused fails to appear before the Board of Directors on the specified hearing date, the hearing may be held, based upon the evidence previously provided to the accused and other relevant evidence.
- j. At the conclusion of presentation of evidence, the Board of Directors shall vote whether to hold the accused in contempt. The accused shall not be present during deliberation. A determination of misconduct shall be upon the concurrence of a majority of the Board of Directors members present, excluding the accused who shall not have a vote and cannot take part in deliberations.
- k. Upon the determination of the Board of Directors of misconduct by the accused, the Board of Directors shall ask if the accused wishes to make a statement to the Board of Directors. Thereafter, The Board of Directors shall excuse the accused from the hearing and move to the determination of sanctions, which may include:
 - 1. A statement of censure, identifying the misconduct;
 - 2. Removal of the offending Board of Directors member from membership on one or more Board of Directors committees, or, if chair of any committee, removal from that position, for a specified period, or if no period is specified, until the annual election of Board of Directors officers;
 - 3. Removal of the offending Board of Directors member from holding any Board of Directors office or other appointment currently held;
 - 4. A determination that no compensation shall be earned by the offending Board of Directors member for attendance at the meeting at which the contempt occurred, or for a specified period;
 - 5. A determination that the offending Board of Directors member shall not be provided any defense or indemnity in any civil actions or proceedings arising out of or related to the member's misconduct;
 - 6. Rendering the offending Board of Directors member ineligible to receive any advances or reimbursement of expenses to attend future conferences or meetings (except those previously-approved for which expenses have been incurred prior to the time of the finding of misconduct, for a period of time or subject to conditions specified in the motion;
 - 7. Referral of the matter to the County Grand Jury pursuant to Government Code section 3060, including the evidence adduced during the hearing.

8. Declaring a vacancy in the office of the accused. [May require legislation]

<u>ARTICLE V</u> COMMITTEES

Section I. Committees

At any time, the Chairperson may nominate, and a majority of the Board of Directors may appoint at a duly noticed public meeting, one or more members of the Board of Directors and other persons as necessary or appropriate, to constitute committees for the investigation, study or review of specific matters. At the time of appointing and establishing the committee(s), the Chairperson, with the concurrence of the Board of Directors, shall establish the responsibilities of the committee(s).

The Chairperson, with the approval of the majority of the Board of Directors, may, from time to time, with or without cause, remove one or more members of the Board of Directors and any other persons from membership in any standing or other committee, or may temporarily discontinue, change the functions of, or combine standing or other committees.

Any committee(s) established to deliberate issues affecting the discharge of Medical Staff responsibilities shall include Medical Staff members.

No committee shall use written ballots, whether or not secret, for any purpose in its deliberations. No committee appointed shall have any power or authority to commit the Board of Directors or the District in any manner, unless the Board of Directors, by a motion duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors, has specifically authorized the committee to act for and on behalf of the District.

Any advisory committee, whether permanent or temporary, which is a legislative body as defined in the Brown Act and other applicable law, shall post agendas and have meetings open to the public as provided by law.

Notices of meetings of committees which are legislative bodies shall be made in accordance with Article IV, Section 7 of these Bylaws.

Section 2. Standing Committees

Standing committees as defined by the Brown Act are open to the public and require posting of Notice of Meetings and Agendas. The following committees are the only current standing committees of the Board of Directors:

- A. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee
- B. Governance & Legislative Committee
- C. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee

The Board of Directors shall review annually the committees, their functions, and their membership.

Section 3. Ad Hoc Committees

At any time, the Chairperson may nominate, and a majority of the Board of Directors may appoint at a duly noticed public meeting, one or more members of the Board of Directors to serve on an Ad Hoc Committee for any purpose the Board of Directors deems appropriate. Ad Hoc Committees are advisory committees that are composed solely of Board Members, are less than a quorum of the District Board of Directors, and limited subject matter jurisdiction, and meetings that are not standing or fixed by charter, ordinance, resolution, or formal action. Ad Hoc Committees are not legislative bodies and are not subject to the Brown Act. Ad Hoc Committee meetings are not open to the public, do not require publicly posted agendas and may be held virtually or in person.

ARTICLE VI <u>MANAGEMENT OFFICIALS</u>

Section I. <u>President/Chief Executive Officer</u>.

The Board of Directors shall select and employ a hospital administrator to be known as "President/Chief Executive Officer" who, subject to such policies as may be adopted and such orders as may be issued by the Board of Directors, or by any of its committees to which it has delegated power for such action, shall have the responsibility, as well as the authority, to function as the President/Chief Executive Officer of the institution, translating the Board of Directors' policies into actual operation. Additionally, the President/Chief Executive Officer has the authority to make recommendations to the Board of Directors on policies related to the effective ongoing operations of the District. The Chief Operating Officer/Chief Nurse Executive Officer, in order to maintain day-to-day operation of the District.

Section 2. <u>Clerk of the Board of Directors</u>.

The Clerk of the Board of Directors shall be the Executive Assistant under the immediate supervision of the President/Chief Executive Officer. The President/Chief Executive Officer may assign other staff members as may be necessary to complete the work of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Chief Compliance Officer

The Chief Compliance Officer, hired by the Board of Directors, shall advise the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer regarding the design and implementation of the organization's ethics and compliance programs. The Chief Compliance Officer shall report directly to the Board of Directors regarding material legal and compliance risks and mitigation efforts.

Section 4. <u>President/Chief Executive Officer's Evaluation</u>.

The Board of Directors shall evaluate the President/Chief Executive Officer's performance annually. Such evaluation shall be reduced to writing, with a copy furnished to the President/Chief Executive Officer. The President/Chief Executive Officer shall have an opportunity to reply in writing to the Board of Directors in reference to such evaluation. All written communications concerning any evaluations shall be retained in the confidential files of the Board of Directors and/or the President/Chief Executive Officer's private personnel files. (Gov. Code 54957.)

Section 5. <u>Chief Compliance Officer's Evaluation</u>.

The Board of Directors shall evaluate the Chief Compliance Officer's performance annually. Such evaluation shall be reduced to writing, with a copy furnished to the Compliance Officer and Vice President, Legal Affairs. The Chief Compliance Officer shall have an opportunity to reply in writing to the Board of Directors in reference to such evaluation. All written communications concerning any evaluations shall be retained in the confidential files of the Board of Directors and/or the Chief Compliance Officer's private personnel files. (Gov. Code 54957.)

ARTICLE VII MEDICAL STAFF

Section I. <u>Medical Staff</u>.

The physicians, surgeons, podiatrists, dentists, and allied health professionals, licensed to practice in the State of California, who are permitted to practice in the hospitals and other facilities under the jurisdiction of District, shall be formed into a formal Medical staff, in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, which have been approved by the District Board of Directors. The Medical staff Bylaws shall include, but not be limited to, the following provisions:

- a. Appropriate officers.
- b. Staff appointments on an annual or biennial basis.
- c. Procedure for appointment and reappointment of Medical Staff as provided by the Standards of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care Organizations.
- d. That the Medical Staff shall meet in accordance with the minimum requirements of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care Organizations.

The Medical Staff shall be self-governing with respect to the professional work performed in the hospital and the medical records of the patients shall be the basis for such review and analysis of the professional work of the Medical Staff. The Medical Staff members shall be responsible for preparing and maintaining accurate and complete medical records for all patients (medical records to include, but not be limited to, identification data, personal and family history, history of present illness, physician examination, special examinations, professional or working diagnosis, treatment, gross and microscopic pathological findings, progress notes, final diagnosis, condition on discharge and such other matters as the Medical Staff shall determine or as may be required by applicable law). The practice of medicine and surgery in the hospitals and other facilities under the jurisdiction of the District shall be within the limitations as the Board of Directors may find to be in the best interests of the public health and welfare, including appropriate provision for proof of ability to respond in damages by applicants for staff membership as long as no duly licensed physician and surgeon is excluded from staff membership solely because he or she is licensed by the Osteopathic Medical Board of California. The Medical Staff shall be responsible for the development, adoption and annual review of the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations that are consistent with District policy and with any applicable law. The Medical Staff are subject to, and effective upon, appointment and reappointment by the Board of Directors in accordance with the standards of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care Organizations. (H&S Code 32128.)

The District shall maintain a Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement ("QA/PI") Program developed by a committee composed of at least five (5) physicians who are members of the Medical Staff and one (l) clerical staff member. The QA/PI Program shall be implemented by the QA/PI Committee, and shall be a data-driven, quality assessment and performance improvement program, implemented and maintained on a hospital-wide basis, in compliance with the requirements of Section 482.21 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and other applicable law, as it may be amended from time to time.

Section 2. <u>Medical Staff Membership</u>.

Membership on the Medical Staff is a privilege, not a right, which shall be extended only to physicians, surgeons, podiatrists, dentists, and allied health professionals, licensed to practice in this State whose education, training, experience, demonstrated competence, references and professional ethics, assures, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, that any patient admitted to or treated in the hospitals and other facilities under District jurisdiction will be given high quality professional care. Each applicant and member shall agree to abide by the District Bylaws, Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the District, and applicable law. The word "Physician" when used hereafter in this Article, shall be deemed to include physicians, surgeons, dentists, and podiatrists. (H&S Code 32128.)

Section 3. <u>Exclusion from the Medical Staff</u>.

- a. The Board of Directors shall have the power to exclude from Medical Staff membership, to deny reappointment to the Medical Staff, or to restrict the privileges of any physician, whether a general practitioner or specialist, in any hospital operated by the District, who has not exhibited that standard of education, training, experience, and demonstrated competence, references and professional ethics which will assure, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, that any patient admitted to or treated in the hospitals and other facilities under District jurisdiction will be given high quality professional care.
- b. In the case of both general practitioners and specialists, the medical resources available in the field of his or her practice shall be considered in determining the skill and care required. No physician shall be entitled to membership on the Medical Staff, or to the enjoyment or particular privileges, merely by virtue of the fact that he or she is duly licensed to practice medicine or surgery in this or any other state, or that he or she is a member of some professional organization, or that he or she, in the past or presently, has such privileges at another hospital. The burden shall be upon the physician making an initial application for membership to establish that he or she is professionally competent and ethical. (H&S Code 32128 and 32150; B&P Code 809.3.)

Section 4. <u>Hospital Rules</u>.

The Bylaws of the Medical Staff shall set forth the procedure by which eligibility for Medical Staff membership and establishment of professional privileges shall be determined. Such Bylaws shall provide that the Medical Staff or a committee or committees thereof, shall study the qualifications of all applicants in the establishment of professional privileges, and shall submit to the Board of Directors recommendations thereon. Such recommendations shall be considered by the Board of Directors, but shall not be binding upon the Board of Directors. The Medical Staff shall be responsible for a process or processes designed to assure that individuals who provide patient care services, but who are not subject to the Medical Staff privilege delineation process, are competent to provide such services and that the quality of patient care services provided by these individuals is reviewed as a part of the District's quality assurance programs. (H&S Code 32150.)

Section 5. <u>Hearings and Appeals</u>.

The Board of Directors hereby incorporates by reference the provisions of the Medical Staff Bylaws relating to hearing procedures and appeals regarding the professional privileges of any member of, or applicant for membership on, the Medical Staff, as those Bylaws may be amended from time to time, subject to applicable law. These provisions are presently outlined in the relevant sections of the Medical Staff Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII

MISCELLANEOUS

Section l. <u>Title to Property</u>.

The title to all property of the District shall be vested in the District, and the signature of any officers of the Board of Directors, authorized at any meeting of the Board of Directors, shall constitute the proper authority for the purchase or sale of property or for the investment or other disposal of funds which are subject to the control of the District. (H&S Code 32121(c) and 32123.)

Section 2. <u>Seal</u>.

The Board of Directors shall have the power to adopt a form of Corporate Seal, and to alter it at its pleasure. (H&S Code 32121 (a).)

Section 3. <u>Amendment</u>.

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, repealed, added to or deleted, by a majority vote of all of the Board of Directors in office at that time, at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. <u>Annual Review of Bylaws</u>.

The Board of Directors shall review the Bylaws annually and make any necessary changes that are necessary to be consistent with District policy, any applicable laws or other rules and regulations connected with operation of a hospital or other facility within District jurisdiction.

Section 5. <u>Reserved</u>.

Section 6. <u>Affiliated Organizations</u>.

- a. <u>Auxiliary Organizations</u>. The Board of Directors may authorize the formation of auxiliary organizations to assist in the fulfillment of the purposes of the District. Each such organization shall establish its bylaws, rules, and regulations, which shall be subject to Board of Directors approval and which shall not be inconsistent with these bylaws or the policies of the Board of Directors.
- b. <u>Foundations</u>. The Board of Directors may authorize the formation of non-profit public benefit corporations, under applicable law, to assist in the fulfillment of the purposes of the District. Each such corporation shall establish its bylaws, rules, and regulations, which shall be subject to Board of Directors approval and

which shall not be inconsistent with these bylaws or the policies of the Board of Directors.

These Bylaws of the IMPERIAL VALLEY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT are hereby approved this 11th day of April, 2024.

Chairperson

ATTEST:

Board Secretary

CODE FOR LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY

- California Health and Safety Code Section 32000 *et seq.* The Local Health Care District Law
- California Elections Code Section 10500 et seq. Uniform District Election Law
- California Government Code Section 54950 et seq.- Ralph M. Brown Act
- California Business and Professions Code

Imperial Valley Healthcare District Imperial, California

Conflict of Interest Policy

A. <u>PURPOSE:</u>

This Policy sets forth (1) a statement of Imperial Valley Healthcare District's policy regarding the Districts avoidance of actual, potential and/or perceived conflicts of interest, and establishes procedures designed to ensure that conflicts are properly disclosed and resolved in the best interests of District and those whom it serves.

B. <u>GENERAL POLICIES:</u>

- 1. District is a public entity that utilizes public funds. Moreover, it is a public entity that furnishes high quality care to patients in its communities. In this capacity, District must earn and consistently maintain the trust and confidence of the families and patients that it serves, making it essential that District undertake all matters in the best interests of District without the presence or perceived presence of any conflicts of interest.
- 2. Consistent with District's Code of Conduct, Districts directors, officers and employees must perform their duties and obligations in the best interests of District, avoiding all transactions, arrangements and decisions that may give rise to conflicts of interest or personal gain.

C. <u>DEFINITIONS:</u>

- 1. <u>Conflict of Interest</u>. A conflict of interest occurs whenever an individual, whether or not the individual is a District employee, is in a position to control or influence a District business matter or decision has a personal, financial or otherwise competing interest in the outcome of the matter or decision.
 - a. A potential or perceived "personal, financial or otherwise competing interest' is considered a Conflict of Interest for purposes of this Policy 8750-570.
 - b. A "personal, financial or otherwise competing interest' exists when an individual or an Immediate Family Member stands to gain or lose - directly or indirectly - as a result of the outcome of the matter or decision.

2. <u>Immediate Family Member</u>, This term means a spouse or civil union partner, natural or adoptive parent, child, or sibling; stepparent, stepchild, stepbrother or stepsister; father-in law, motherin-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law; grandparent or grandchild; and the spouse of a grandparent or grandchild.

D. <u>EXAMPLES</u>:

The following are examples of potential Conflicts of Interest, but is by no means an exhaustive list:

- 1 The son of a District employee spouse is the co-owner of a gardening company that submits a bid to perform lawn and gardening maintenance services for District.
- 2 A member of District's Board of Directors is a partner in an entity seeking to do business with District.
- 3 The sales representative of one of Districts equipment vendors offers one of District's managers (who is important to the representative's account) a gift or other entertainment, such as a coupon for a dinner for two at a fine local restaurant.
- 4 A member of District's senior management team owns stock in a medical device company seeking to sell its products to District.
- 5 One of Districts Directors proposes for District to do business with a consulting firm which employs or is controlled by the Directors husband.

E. <u>PROCEDURES</u>:

- 1. On an annual basis, every District director, officer and employee shall review this Policy and complete, sign and date the Conflicts of Interest Attestation attached hereto.
- 2. Each new director, officer and employee shall review this Policy and complete, sign and date the Conflicts of Interest Attestation attached hereto within 60 days of his or her appointment or employment.
- 3. In the event that, in the period between executing the last annual Conflicts of Interest Attestation and executing the next annual Attestation, an individual's Conflicts of Interest Attestation ceases to be accurate or complete, the affected director, officer or employee shall promptly complete, sign and date a new Attestation.
- 4. All Attestations must be provided to the Chief Compliance Officer, who will review them and maintain them in compliance with the District's document retention policies.

- 5. Any director, officer or employee who believes that he or she has or may have a Conflict of Interest with respect to any District matter or decision must bring his or her concern to the immediate attention of the Compliance Officer.
- 6. The Chief Compliance Officer will review all Conflict of Interest disclosures (whether in the form of the Attestation or otherwise) and, with the assistance of legal counsel as appropriate, determine whether the affected individual must recuse himself or herself from the matter or decision or take some other action in the best interests of the District.
- 7. The Chief Compliance Officer shall provide day-to-day guidance with respect to matters falling under this Policy.
- 8. The failure fully, accurately and promptly to disclose actual, potential or perceived Conflicts of Interest may result in corrective action, including disciplinary action.

F. <u>DOCUMENTATION</u>:

As set forth above, all Conflicts of Interest Attestations, as well as all other documents relating to Conflicts of Interest and their resolution, shall be maintained in the District's Compliance Program files consistent with District's document retention policies.

G. <u>MONITORING AND AUDITING</u>:

Compliance with this Policy shall be monitored and audited in compliance with District's Monitoring and Auditing Policies. Such monitoring and auditing shall be documented in the Compliance Program files.

ATTESTATION

I, ________ acknowledge receipt of this policy, Conflicts of Interest, and attest that I have read it. I further agree and attest that i understand the significance of this policy and will not engage in any conduct that could be a violation of the same. In the event that I believe I have a conflict, then I shall report it to the Chief Compliance Officer promptly. In the event that I am aware of any other individual or situation that may give rise to or present a conflict of interest, I understand that I have a duty to report it to the Chief Compliance Officer.

Date:

Signature

Printed Name